
 
 
 

 
 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Meeting 

 
May 13, 2022 

 
 

Amended 5/6/2022 
 

 

Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.     •     Kenneth T. Jones     •     Nick Cox, J.D. 

    Charlie Cofer, J.D.    •    Robin Giddens Sheppard, L.F.D. 

Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.    •    Carol R. Whitmore, R.N. 



The next MEC Meeting will be July 27th in conjunction with the FAME Educational Conference in Orlando. 

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION MEETING 
Wyndham Grand Jupiter at Harbourside Place 

122 Soundings Avenue 
Jupiter, FL 33477 

May 13, 2022, 10:00 AM EDT 
 

Amended 5/6/2022 
 

Opening Remarks 

Introduction of Commission Members and Staff 

Approval of Meeting Agenda and Minutes from previous Commission Meeting of February 18, 2022 
 
 

ISSUE NUMBER PRESENTER 

1. Informational Items:   
• Status Report:  MEC Appointments and Reappointments Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. 
• Status Update: DME Appointments and Reappointments Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. 
• District 2 Medical Examiner Vacancy Stephen Nelson, M.D. 
• District 8 Medical Examiner Vacancy Stephen Nelson, M.D. 
• District 22 Medical Examiner Vacancy Stephen Nelson, M.D. 
• New District 11 Medical Examiner Stephen Nelson, M.D. 
• New District 7 Medical Examiner Facility Stephen Nelson, M.D. 
• New District 12 Medical Examiner Facility Stephen Nelson, M.D. 
• 2021 Interim Drugs in Deceased Persons Report Megan Neel 
• 2021 Annual MEC Reports Reminder Megan Neel 
• 2021 Coverdell Status Update Chad Lucas 
• 2022 Coverdell Status Update Chad Lucas 
• 2022 Legislative Session Bills of Interest Jim Martin, J.D. 

2. Reappointment Nominations for Districts 8, 10, 12, and 14, and Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. 
Assessments for Districts 9, 11, 13, and 25 

3. FEMORS in Florida Larry Bedore, Norman Kassoff, J.D. 

4. Pathologist Assistants in Florida Stephen Nelson, M.D. 

5. Department of Health CHARTS Presentation Ursula Weiss, Ph.D. 

6. Department of Health OD2A and FLVDRS Updates Katherine McDaniel, MPH 

7. Emerging Drugs Bruce A. Goldberger, Ph.D. 

8. 2022 FAME Educational Conference Bruce A. Goldberger, Ph.D. 

9. Other Business Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 

• FEMA Funeral Billing 

• Thank you letter to all DME Offices 



Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.
Chairman

District 10 Medical Examiner
1021 Jim Keene Boulevard

Winter Haven, Florida 33880
(863) 298-4600

email: StephenNelson@polk-county.net
First Term: 2/13/2014-7/1/2016

Second Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2020 

Barbara C. Wolf, M.D. Honorable Charlie Cofer, J.D.
District 5 Medical Examiner Public Defender, 4th Judicial Circuit
809 Pine Street 407 N. Laura Street
Leesburg, Florida 34748 Jacksonville, Florida 32202
(352) 326-5961 (904) 255-4673
email: barbara.wolf@marioncountyfl.org email: ccofer@pd4.coj.net
First Term: 8/7/2015-7/1/2019 First Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2021

Vacant Nick Cox, J.D. 
Sheriff Statewide Prosecutor

Office of the Attorney General
3507 E. Frontage Road, Suite 325
Tampa, Florida 33607
813-287-7960
email: nick.cox@myfloridalegal.com
Term: Not Applicable

Robin Giddens Sheppard, L.F.D. Vacant
Funeral Director/Vice President State Attorney
Hardage-Giddens Funeral Homes
4801 San Jose Boulevard
Jacksonville, Florida 32207
(904) 737-7171
email: Robin.Sheppard@dignitymemorial.com
First Term: 8/15/2013-7/1/2016
Second Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2020

Mr. Kenneth T. Jones Honorable Carol Whitmore
State Registrar Manatee County Commission
Florida Department of Health Board of County Commissioners
Bureau of Vital Statistics Post Office Box 1000
Post Office Box 210 Bradenton, Florida 34206-1000
Jacksonville, Florida 32231 (941) 745-3704
(904) 359-6900 ext. 1001 email: carol.whitmore@mymanatee.org
email: Ken.Jones@flhealth.gov First Term: 8/15/2013-7/1/2017
Term: Not Applicable Second Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2021

STAFF

Medical Examiners Commission
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489
Tallahassee, Florida 32302

(850) 410-8600

Bureau Chief Brett Kirkland Government Analyst II Chad Lucas 
(850) 410-8600 (850) 410-8609
brettkirkland@fdle.state.fl.us stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us

Government Analyst II Megan Neel General Counsel James Martin, J.D.
(850) 410-8664 (850) 410-7676
meganneel@fdle.state.fl.us jamesmartin@fdle.state.fl.us

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Updated April 8, 2021

mailto:brettkirkland@fdle.state.fl.us
mailto:stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us
mailto:meganneel@fdle.state.fl.us
mailto:jamesmartin@fdle.state.fl.us


District 1 District 9 (Home Rule) District 17 (Home Rule)

Deanna Oleske, M.D. Joshua D. Stephany, M.D. Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.

Interim Medical Examiner 2350 East Michigan Street Medical Examiner

2114 Airport Blvd. Suite 1450 Orlando, Florida  32806 5301 S.W. 31st Avenue

Pensacola, Florida  32504 Program Manager Sheri Blanton Ft. Lauderdale, Florida  33312

Director of Operations Dan Schebler (407) 836-9400 Division Admin Assistant Heather Galvez

(850) 332-7300 FAX:(407) 836-9450 (954) 357-5200

FAX: (850) 285-0774 e-mail: Sheri.Blanton@ocfl.net FAX: (954) 327-6580

e-mail: dans@fldme.com e-mail: rmacdougall@broward.org
District 10

District 2 Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P. District 18

David T. Stewart, M.D. 1021 Jim Keene Boulevard Sajid S. Qaiser, M.D.

560 Leonard Gray Way Winter Haven, Florida  33880 1750 Cedar Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32304 Office Manager Sheli Wilson Rockledge, Florida  32955

Operations Manager Tiffany Poston (863) 298-4600 Program Manager Chris Imel

(850) 606-6600 FAX:(863) 298-5264 (321) 633-1981

FAX: (850) 606-6601 e-mail: StephenNelson@polk-county.net FAX: (321) 633-1986

e-mail: Info@Dist2ME.org e-mail: sajid.qaiser@brevardcounty.us
District 11 (Home Rule)

District 3 Kenneth Hutchins, M.D. District 19
Dixie Co. Medical Examiner Patricia A. Aronica, M.D.
   ME Services Provided by District 8 Number One on Bob Hope Road Interim Medical Examiner

Lafayette, Madison & Suwannee Co. Miami, Florida  33136-1133 2500 South 35th Street
   ME Services Provided by District 2 Director of Operations Sandra Boyd Ft. Pierce, Florida  34981
Columbia & Hamilton Co. (305) 545-2400 Operations Manager Christine Canard

   ME Services Provided by District 4 FAX: (305) 545-2412 (772) 464-7378

e-mail: sandra.boyd@miamidade.gov FAX: (772) 464-2409

District 4 e-mail: canardc@stlucieco.org
B. Robert Pietak, M.D. District 12

Interim Medical Examiner Russell S. Vega, M.D. District 20

2100 Jefferson Street 2001 Siesta Drive, Suite 302 Marta U. Coburn, M.D.

Jacksonville, Florida  32206 Sarasota, Florida  34239 3838 Domestic Avenue

Director of Operations Tim Crutchfield Director of Operations David Winterhalter Naples, Florida  34104

(904) 255-4000 (941) 361-6909 Adminsitrative Coordinator Michelle Correia

FAX: (904) 630-0964 FAX: (941) 361-6914 (239) 434-5020

e-mail: tcrutchfield@coj.net email: rvega@fldist12me.com FAX: (239) 434-5027

e-mail: naplesme@d20me.net
District 5 District 13 (Home Rule)

Barbara C. Wolf, M.D. Kelly G. Devers, M.D. District 21

809 Pine Street 11025 North 46th Street Rebecca A. Hamilton, M.D.

Leesburg, Florida  34748 Tampa, Florida  33617 70 South Danley Drive

Director of Operations Lindsey Bayer Manager of Operations Harrison Cowan Ft. Myers, Florida  33907

(352) 326-5961 (813) 914-4500 Director of Operations Patti Wheaton

FAX: (352) 365-6438 FAX: (813) 914-4594 (239) 533-6339

e-mail: Lindsey.Bayer@marioncounty fl.org email: DeversK@hillsboroughcounty.org FAX: (239) 277-5017

e-mail: pwheaton@leegov.com
District 6 District 14

Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D. Jay Radtke, M.D. District 22

10900 Ulmerton Road 3737 Frankford Avenue Riazul H. Imami, M.D., Ph.D.

Largo, Florida  33778 Panama City, Florida  32405 18130 Paulson Drive

Chief Investigator Damon Breton Director of Operations Whit Majors Pt. Charlotte, Florida  33954

(727) 582-6800 (850) 747-5740 Director of Operations Penny Fulton

FAX: (727) 582-6820 FAX: (850) 747-5745 (941) 625-1111

e-mail: dbreton@co.pinellas.fl.us e-mail: wmajors@baycountyfl.gov FAX: (941) 627-0995

e-mail: medex22@embarqmail.com
District 7 (Home Rule) District 15 (Home Rule)

James W. Fulcher, M.D. Wendolyn Sneed, M.D. District 23

1360 Indian Lake Road 3126 Gun Club Road Predrag Bulic, M.D.

Daytona Beach, FL  32124-1001 West Palm Beach, Florida  33406 4501 Avenue A

Director of Operations Karla Orozco Forensic Supervisor Heron Ruiz St. Augustine, Florida  32095

(386) 258-4060 (561) 688-4575 Forensic Operations Coordinator Kelly Boulos

FAX: (386) 258-4061 FAX: (561) 688-4588 (904) 209-0820

e-mail: korozco@volusia.org e-mail: wsneed@pbcgov.org FAX: (800) 255-8617

e-mail: kboulos@sjcfl.us
District 8 District 16

William F. Hamilton, M.D. Michael Steckbauer, M.D. District 24

3217 SW 47th Avenue Interim Medical Examiner Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.

Gainesville, Florida 32608 56639 Overseas Hwy ME Services Provided by District 5

Operations Manager Ricardo Camacho Marathon, Florida  33050

(352) 273-9292 (305) 743-9011 District 25 (Home Rule)

FAX: (352) 273-9288 FAX: (305) 743-9013 Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.

e-mail: ricardocamacho@ufl.edu e-mail: meo@monroecounty-fl.gov ME Services Provided by District 9

FLORIDA DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINERS

May 6, 2022



FLORIDA ASSOCIATE MEDICAL EXAMINERS

District 1 District 7 District 11 District 17
Tim J. Gallagher, M.D., M.H.S.A. Cassie Boggs, M.D. Mary Grace Centeno, M.D. Iouri G. Boiko, M.D., Ph.D.
Ami Murphy, D.O. Mary G. Ripple, M.D. Samantha Champion, M.D. Marcela Chiste, M.D.
(Danielle R. Armstrong, D.O.) (Noel R. Agudo, M.D.) Erik Handberg, M.D. Erin Ely, M.D.
(Wilson A. Broussard, M.D.) (Marcela Chiste, M.D.) Kenneth Hutchins, M.D. Alexis Jelinek, M.D.
(Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D.) (Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) Katherine Kenerson, M.D. Gertrude M. Juste, M.D.
(Jennifer Dierksen, M.D.) (Kailee Imperatore, M.D.) Iana Lesnikova, M.D. Reinhard W. Motte, M.D.
(Lisa Flannagan, M.D.) (Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) Benjamin Mathis, M.D. Stephen Robinson, M.D.
(Maneesha Pandey, M.D.) (Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.) Shanedelle S. Norford, M.D. Javier Sanchez-Ortiz, M.D. 
(Jay M. Radtke, M.D.) (Noel A. Palma, M.D.) Mark J. Shuman, M.D. Darin Trelka, M.D., Ph.D.

(Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.) Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O. (Kenneth Hutchins, M.D.)
District 2 (Lee Tormos, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.) (Katherine L. Kenerson, M.D.)
Anthony J. Clark, M.D. (Christopher I. Wilson, M.D.) (Iouri G. Boiko, M.D., Ph.D.) (Emma O. Lew, M.D.)
Lisa M. Flannagan, M.D. (Manfred Borges, M.D.) (Benjamin Mathis, M.D.)
Stephen L. Sgan, M.D. District 8 (Marcela Chiste, M.D.) (Wendolyn Sneed, M.D.)
(Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) Wendy A. Stroh, D.O. (Marta Coburn, M.D.)
(Kailee Imperatore, M.D.) (Robert Buchsbaum, M.D., J.D.) (Gertrude M. Juste, M.D.) District 18
(Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) (Predrag Bulic, M.D.) (Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.)
(Noel A. Palma, M.D.) (Leszek Chrostwoski, M.D.) (Craig Mallak, M.D.) District 19

(Tracey S. Corey, M.D.) (Linda R. O'Neil, M.D.) Raman Baldzizhar, M.D.
District 3 (Peter Gillespie, M.D.) (Marlon S. Osbourne, M.D.) Linda Rush O'Neil, M.D.
Dixie Co. (Tera A. Jones, M.D.) (Stephen Robinson, M.D.) Adrienne Sauder, M.D.
  ME Services Provided by District 8 (Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D.) (Stacey A. Simons, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.)
Lafayette, Madison, & Suwannee Co. (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) (Terrill Tops, M.D.) (Stuart M. Graham, M.D.)
  ME Services Provided by District 2 (Aurelian Nicolaescu, M.D.) (Lee Marie Tormos, M.D.) (Marie H. Hansen, M.D.)
Columbia & Hamilton Co. (Deanna A. Oleske, M.D.) (Gertrude M. Juste, M.D.)
  ME Services Provided by District 4 (Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.) District 12 (Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D.)

(Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) Wilson A. Broussard, M.D. (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.)
District 4 Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D. (Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.)
Robert Buchsbaum, M.D., J.D. District 9 Suzanne R. Utley-Bobak, M.D. (Sajid S. Qaiser, M.D.)
Peter Gillespie, M.D. Jesse C. Giles, M.D. (Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.)
Brittany L. Glad, D.O. Marie H. Hansen, M.D. (Laura S. Hair, M.D.) (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.)
Aurelian Nicolaescu, M.D. Rachel A. Lange, M.D. (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) (Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.)
Robert R. Pfalzgraf, M.D. Chantel Njiwaji, M.D. (Robert R. Pfalzgraf, M.D.) (Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O.)
(Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.) Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O. (Valerie J. Rao, M.D.)
(William F. Hamilton, M.D.) (Tracy S. Corey, M.D.) (Daniel L. Schultz, M.D.) District 20
(Deanna A. Oleske, M.D.) (Heather M. Gage, M.D) (Wendolyn Sneed, M.D.) Manfred Borges, Jr., M.D.
(Valerie J. Rao, M.D.) (Julia V. Hegert, M.D.) Andrea N. Minyard, M.D.
(Wendy A. Stroh, D.O.) (Tera A. Jones, M.D.) District 13 (Michael D. Bell, M.D.)
(Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) (Wendy Lavezzi, M.D.) Ryan D. McCormick, M.D. (Rebecca A. Hamilton, M.D.)

(Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) Daissy C. McEnnan, M.D. (Emma O. Lew, M.D.)
District 5 (Sajid S. Qaiser, M.D.) Ashley R. Perkins, D.O.
Tracey S. Corey, M.D. (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.) Milad Webb, M.D. District 21
Heather M. Gage, M.D. (Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) (Thomas M. Coyne, M.D.) Colin D. Appleford, D.O.
Tera A. Jones, M.D. (Mary K. Mainland, M.D.) Noelia Alemar Hernandez, M.D.
Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D. District 10 (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.) Tracy L. Shipe, D.O.
Shanedelle S. Norford, M.D. D. Fintan Garavan, M.D., Ph.D. (Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.)
(Michael Bell, M.D.) Vera V. Volnikh, M.D. (Manfred C. Borges, M.D.)
(James W. Fulcher, M.D.) (Kelly G. Devers, M.D.) District 14 (Wilson A. Broussard, Jr., M.D.)
(William F. Hamilton, M.D.) (Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) Thomas M. Coyne, M.D. (Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.)
(Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) (Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.) (Marta U. Coburn, M. D.)
(Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) (Wendy Lavezzi, M.D.) (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.) (Riazul H. Imami, M.D., Ph.D.)
(Aurelian Nicolaescu, M.D.) (Ryan D. McCormick, M.D.) (Tim J. Gallagher, M.D., M.H.S.A.) (Katherine L. Kenerson, M.D.)
(Noel A. Palma, M.D.) (Noel A. Palma, M.D.) (Katherine L. Kenerson, M.D.) (Rachel A. Lange, M.D.)
(Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.) (Ashley R. Perkins, D.O.) (Andrea N. Minyard, M.D.) (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.)
(Wendy A. Stroh, D.O.) (Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.) (Valerie J. Rao, M.D.)
(Jon Thogmartin, M.D.) (Christopher I. Wilson, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.)
(Gary L. Utz, M.D.) (Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) District 15 (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.)
(Christopher I. Wilson, M.D.) Natalia Belova, M.D. (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.)

Catherine Miller, M.D.
District 6 Marlon S. Osbourne, M.D. District 22
Noel R. Agudo, M.D. Heidi Reinhard, M.D. Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.
Susan S. Ignacio, M.D. Terrill Tops, M.D. (Wilson A. Broussard, Jr., M.D.)
Kailee Imperatore, M.D. Lee Marie Tormos, M.D. (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.)
Wayne D. Kurz, M.D. Anthony Vinson, DO (Suzanne R. Utley-Bobak, M.D.)
Noel A. Palma, M.D. (Michael Bell, M.D.) (Russell S. Vega, M.D.)
Christopher I. Wilson, M.D. (Kenneth D. Hutchins, M.D.)
(Wilson A. Broussard, M.D.) (Stacey A. Simons, M.D.) District 23
(Marcela Chiste, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.)
(Tracey S. Corey, M.D.) (Michael Steckbauer, M.D.) District 24
(Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D.) ME Services Provided by District 5
(Rebecca A. Hamilton, M.D.) District 16
(Tera A. Jones, M.D.) (Iouri G. Boiko, M.D. Ph.D.) District 25
(Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D.) (Marlon S. Osbourne, M.D.) ME Services Provided by District 9
(Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.) ME Services Provided by District 9
(Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.)
(Mark J. Shuman, M.D.)
(Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.)
(Suzanne R. Utley-Bobak, M.D.)
(Russell S. Vega, M.D.)
(Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.)
(Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.)

Effective May 6 2022 (  ) Indicates secondary appointment for cross coverage



District 1 

Escambia 

Okaloosa 

Santa Rosa 

Walton 

 

District 2 

Franklin 

Gadsden 

Jefferson 

Leon 

Liberty 

Taylor 

Wakulla 

 

District 3 *Covered by 

Columbia *4 

Dixie *8 

Hamilton *4 

Lafayette *2 

Madison *2 

Suwannee *2 

 

District 4 

Clay 

Duval 

Nassau 

 

District 5 

Citrus 

Hernando 

Lake 

Marion 

Sumter 

 

District 6 

Pasco 

Pinellas 

 

District 7 

Volusia 

 

District 8 

Alachua 

Baker 

Bradford 

Gilchrist 

Levy 

Union 

 

District 9 

Orange 

 

District 10 

Hardee 

Highlands 

Polk 

District 11 

Miami-Dade 

 

District 12 

DeSoto 

Manatee 

Sarasota 

 

District 13 

Hillsborough 

 

District 14 

Bay 

Calhoun 

Gulf 

Holmes 

Jackson 

Washington 

 

District 15 

Palm Beach 

 

District 16 

Monroe  

 

District 17 

Broward 

 

District 18 

Brevard 

 

S
a
n
ta

 R
o
s
a
 

 O
k
a
lo

o
s
a
 

 
W

a
lt
o
n
 

 

Holmes 

 

Bay 

 

Jackson 

 
Calhoun 

 
Gulf 

 

Leon 

 

Gadsden 

 
Liberty 

 Franklin 

 

Wakulla 

 
Taylor 

 

Baker 

 

Dixie 

 

Suwannee 

 

Citrus 

 

Alachua 

 

Clay 

 

S
t.

 

J
o
h
n
s
 

 

Putnam 

 
Marion 

 

Levy 

 
Lake 

 S
u
m

te
r 

 

Hernando 

 

Seminole 

 Orange 

 
Polk 

 
Osceola 

 
Manatee 

 
Desoto 

 

Hardee 

 Highlands 

 
Charlotte 

 
Glades 

 
Hendry 

 
Collier 

 

Lee 

 

Miami-

Dade 

 

Broward 

 

Palm Beach 

 

Monroe 

 

Martin 

 

St.  

Lucie 

 

Indian 

River 

 

Pasco 

 

1 
 14 

 
2 
 

3 4 
 

23 
 

5 
 

7 
 

6 
 13 

 
10 
 

9 
 

18 
 

12 
 
22 
 

21 
 

17 
 

11 
 

16 
 

24 
 

20 
 

8 
 

19 
 
15 
 

C
o
lu

m
b
ia

 

 

Madison 

 

Coverage Map 
Florida Medical Examiner Districts 

 

District 19 

Indian River 

Martin 

Okeechobee 

St. Lucie 

 

District 20 

Collier 

 

District 21 

Glades 

Hendry 

Lee 

 

District 22 

Charlotte 

 

District 23 

Flagler 

Putnam 

St. Johns 

 

District 24 *Covered by 

Seminole *5 

 

District 25 *Covered by 

Osceola *9 

 

25 
 



 
MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION MEETING 

Orlando Marriott Lake Mary 
1501 International Parkway 
Lake Mary, Florida 32751 

February 18, 2022 10:00 AM EST 
 
 
Commission Chairman Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P, called the meeting of the Medical 
Examiners Commission to order at 10:05 AM. He advised those in the audience that the meetings of 
the Medical Examiners Commission are open to the public and that members of the public will be 
allowed five minutes to speak.  He then welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked Commission 
members, staff, and audience members to introduce themselves. 
 
Commission members present: 

Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P., District 10 Medical Examiner 
Barbara C. Wolf, M.D., District 5 & 24 Medical Examiner 
Nick Cox, J.D., Statewide Prosecutor, Office of the Attorney General  
Robin Giddens Sheppard, L.F.D., Funeral Director 
Kenneth T. Jones, State Registrar, Department of Health 
Hon. Charlie Cofer, J.D., Public Defender, 4th Judicial Circuit 
Hon. Carol R. Whitmore, R.N., Manatee County Commissioner 

 
Commission staff present: 

Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. Chad Lucas 
Megan Neel James D. Martin, J.D. 
Vickie Koenig 

 
District Medical Examiners present: 

Russell S. Vega, M.D. (District 12) Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D. (District 6) 
James W. Fulcher, M.D. (District 7) Joshua D. Stephany, M.D. (Districts 9 & 25) 
 

Other District personnel present: 
Lindsey Bayer (Districts 5 & 24) Paul Petrino (District 15)  
Ralph Saccone (District 15) Dan Schebler (District 1) 
Karla Orozco (District 7) Ricardo Camacho (District 8) 
Bill Pellan (District 12) Michael Bell, M.D. (District 15) 
Tiffany Poston (District 2) Christine Canard (District 19) 
Andrea Minyard, M.D. (District 20)  

 
Guests present: 

Bruce A. Goldberger, Ph.D. (UF) Liz Lehr (LifeLink)  
Ginny McBride (OurLegacy) Kasper Statz (OurLegacy)  
Carol Plumsey (OurLegacy) Tom Davis (OurLegacy) 
Vaughn Thornton (Legacy) Victor Bowers (LifeLink) 
Kerri Bryan (FL DOH) Avalon Adams-Thames, DrPH (FL DOH) 
Jon Rigsby (FDLE) Heather Hoog (Lions Eye) 
Larry Cochran (LifeQuest) Linda McCluskey (LifeLink) 
Chris Boden Patricia Darrigan (Legacy) 
 
 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE, SECONDED, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
APPROVE THE AGENDA. 
 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE, SECONDED, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 5, 2021 MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 
MEETING. 
 
 
ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 
Brett Kirkland, Ph.D., announced that the Chairman of the Commission is elected at the first meeting of 
the year, and opened the floor for nominations.  Barbara Wolf, M.D., nominated Stephen Nelson, M.A., 
M.D., F.C.A.P., and Robin Giddens-Sheppard seconded the nomination.  Honorable Charlie Cofer, J.D. 
motioned to close the nominations and Nick Cox, J.D., seconded that motion. 
 
THE MOTION WAS PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ELECT STEPHEN J. NELSON, M.A., M.D., 
F.C.A.P., AS CHAIRMAN OF THE MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION FOR 2022. 
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 1: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
• Status Report: MEC Appointments and Reappointments:  Bureau Chief Brett Kirkland informed the 
Commission that the reappointment paperwork for Dr. Stephen J. Nelson, Dr. Barbara C. Wolf, and Mrs. 
Robin Giddens Sheppard are in the Governor’s Appointments Office and they have everything they 
need for those reappointments.  Additionally, the appointment paperwork for the County Commissioner 
seat as well as the vacant State Attorney and Sheriff seats have been submitted to the Governor’s 
Appointments Office and they have everything they need for the appointments.  We are currently 
awaiting approvals from the Governor’s Appointments Office.   
 
• Status Report: DME Appointments and Reappointments:  Mr. Kirkland informed the Commission 
that all District Medical Examiners are currently pending either appointment or reappointment.  The 
Governor’s Appointments Office has stated they have received all necessary paperwork for the 
appointments and reappointments.  We are currently awaiting approvals from the Governor’s 
Appointments Office.   
 
• District 2 Medical Examiner Vacancy:  Dr. Nelson informed the Commission that David T. Stewart, 
M.D., has announced that he no longer wishes to be the District 2 Medical Examiner.  A search 
committee is currently being formed by Jack Campbell, the State Attorney for the 2nd Judicial Circuit.  
  
• District 8 Medical Examiner Vacancy:  Dr. Nelson informed the Commission that William F. Hamilton, 
M.D., has announced his decision to retire from the position of District 8 Medical Examiner.  The search 
committee procedure has not yet gotten underway, but it is likely that the position will also be with the 
University of Florida College of Medicine.  He will be meeting with the University of Florida’s Chairman 
of Pathology this weekend to discuss the vacancy.  

 
• District 11 Medical Examiner Vacancy:  Dr. Nelson informed the Commission that there is an Interim 
District Medical Examiner in District 11 and, so far, there has been no movement in finding a full-time 
replacement for Dr. Lew.  

 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 
• 2022 Reappointments/Assessments for Districts 8-14 & 25:  Mr. Chad Lucas informed the 
Commission that ballots and assessment forms were mailed to constituents of Districts 8-14 & 25 on 
January 5, 2022.  The requested response date is February 18, 2022.  If there are any constituents that 
do not respond by then, MEC staff will reach out to them in order to have responses for the spring 
Commission meeting.  So far responses have been great with no unfavorable ballots reported. 

 
• 2021 Annual MEC Reports:  Mrs. Megan Neel informed the Commission that data for the Annual 
Workload Report and the Annual Drugs Identified in Deceased Persons Report is due by May 31, 2022, 
and asked that districts please submit their data sooner rather than later.  She will begin sending out 
reminders in March. 

 
• 2021 Interim Drugs Identified in Deceased Persons Report:  Mrs. Neel informed the Commission 
that data has been received by some districts, and that data has been sent to the Quality Assurance 
Committee for review.  She hopes to have all data back soon so that the report can be published in 
April. 

 
• 2021 Coverdell Status Update:  Mr. Lucas informed the Commission that, as of now, the Bureau of 
Justice Assistance (BJA) has not released funds for the 2021 Coverdell Grant.  When funds are 
released, each participating district will receive a hard copy of their Memorandum of Understanding from 
the FDLE grant manager for signature.  Mr. Lucas will also e-mail award packages to each district upon 
release of funds from the BJA. 

 
• Bills Filed for the 2021 Legislative Session:  FDLE General Counsel Jim Martin, J.D., informed the 
Commission of the following bills of interest for the MEC: 

 
Procurement Activities of For-Profit Eye Banks (SB 516) – This bill would prohibit for-profit eye banks 
from procuring certain human organs.  There is no companion House bill, but this is the third year 
in a row that this bill has been filed.  The proposed effective date is July 1, 2022. 
 
Polk County Medical Examiner’s Emergency Generator Replacement (HB 2455) – This bill would 
provide an appropriation of $140,000 for the Polk County Medical Examiner’s Emergency Generator 
Replacement as described in Appropriations Project Request 327.  The proposed effective date is 
July 1, 2022.  

 
District 1 Medical Examiner’s Facility Planning and Design (HB 4883) – This bill would provide an 
appropriation of $500,000 the fund the District 1 Medical Examiner’s Facility Planning and Design 
as described in Appropriations Project Request 1071.  The proposed effective date is July 1, 2022.  
 
Autopsy Reports of Child Victims of Domestic Violence (HB 1513, SB 1550) – This bill creates an 
exemption from public records requirements for autopsy reports of minors whose deaths were 
related to acts of domestic violence.  The bill requires that any viewing, copying, or handling of such 
autopsy reports be under the direct supervision of the custodian of records or designee.  The bill 
also states that any surviving parent who did not commit the act of domestic violence must be given 
reasonable notice of a petition filed with the court to view or copy the report, a copy of such petition, 
and reasonable notice of the opportunity to be present and heard at any hearing on the matter.  The 
proposed effective date is upon becoming law.  

 
 
 
 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 2: ORGAN PROCUREMENT ORGANIZATION 2020 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
Ms. Liz Lehr of LifeLink presented the 2021 annual report for Florida’s organ procurement organizations.  
Ms. Lehr reported that there were again zero transplant denials reported last year for whole organ 
donors.  However, there was one transplant denial for a partial organ donor.  The denial came from the 
District 17 Medical Examiner’s Office out of the LifeAlliance Organ Recovery Agency region.  The heart 
was restricted because of risk criteria being met due to a history of intravenous drug abuse and being 
anti-HCV positive. Ms. Lehr thanked the medical examiners for the outstanding relationship they have 
with the organ procurement organizations in Florida.   
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 3: PAUL COVERDELL FORENSIC SCIENCE IMPROVEMENT GRANTS – 2022 
PROPOSALS 
 
Mr. Lucas informed the Commission that MEC staff sent an e-mail to all districts on January 6, 2022, 
soliciting proposals for the 2022 Paul Coverdell Grant.  Proposals from interested districts were due on 
January 21, 2022.  Fifteen (15) districts submitted proposals with a total of $46,395.92 in requested 
funds.  As of February 16, 2022, the BJA has not yet listed the 2022 grant solicitation, and it also was 
not listed as a forthcoming funding opportunity.  At this time, it is unknown what amount of the grant will 
be allotted to medical examiners.  If funds are granted, staff requests that any district requesting less 
than the average amount be given those funds, and the remainder of the funds be divided equally 
among the other districts. 
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 4: UNIDENTIFIED DECEASED INITIATIVE 
 
Mr. Lucas reported the following success story from District 17: 
 

On December 23, 1975, an unidentified female was found in a canal in the 2600 Block of Southwest 
Avenue in Davie.  The decedent was never identified, the manner of death was ruled undetermined, 
and the remains were buried at a local cemetery.  On December 17, 2019, the District 17 Medical 
Examiner’s Office worked with the Davie Police Department to exhume the remains for further 
analysis to aid in identification.  The Davie Police Department contracted with Parabon NanoLabs, 
a genetic genealogy company, in an attempt to locate family members.  Through their investigation, 
they were able to locate and identify a possible relative of the decedent.  In November 2021, DNA 
comparison with a family member confirmed the identification of the decedent as Carolyn Dunn 
Moudy missing from Indianola, Mississippi since July 1974.  
 

Mr. Lucas reported the following success story from District 20: 
 

On May 3, 2002, deputies responded to reports of a body floating near the shore.  The agency’s 
Marine Unit and detectives searched the area and recovered the body, which was about 1.5 miles 
north of Doctor’s Pass in Collier County.  The District 20 Medical Examiner had classified the death 
as Undetermined based on the circumstances of the recovery.  No criminality was ever established 
to indicate any persons contributed to the death of the decedent.  The body had no identification on 
it, so detectives compared fingerprints through the FDLE database and the National Automated 
Fingerprint Identification System several times over the following years without success.  Detectives 
also entered the decedent into NCIC as unidentified remains.  The decedent’s DNA profile and 
dental information as well as fingerprints and a composite sketch were entered into the National 
Missing and Unidentified Persons System (NamUs).  On November 23, 2021, a positive match was 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

made between the fingerprints submitted to NamUs and the Armed Forces fingerprint card of 
Edward Lorenz Richard, which had been prepared on November 15, 1972, when he enlisted.  Upon 
Collier County Sheriff’s Office receiving notification of the match, detectives were able to locate 
Richard’s brother and adult son in Massachusetts the following day.  Family members said he left 
Massachusetts by bus and headed to Florida about 20 years before his 2002 death.  At the time of 
his departure, he had given all of his identification cards to family and they had not heard from him 
since.  
 

Mr. Lucas reported the following success story from District 6: 
 

On December 27, 2016, Pinellas County deputies responded to Darby Lane for a report of a missing 
person.  They were notified the 34-year-old Rang Truong fled on foot from his brother’s vehicle and 
was unable to be located.  Deputies searched the area in an attempt to find him, but were 
unsuccessful.  He was entered into FCIC/NCIC as a Missing/Endangered Person due to reported 
intellectual disabilities and other mental health concerns.  On January 18, 2022, detectives learned 
that the St. Petersburg Police Department was investigating a report of unidentified remains found 
near the area of Interstate 275, near the Howard Franklin Bridge, and responded to the scene.  
Detectives provided the District 6 Medical Examiner’s Office with Truong’s information as a possible 
identity of the human remains.  With the use of dental records, the remains were positively identified 
as Truong’s.  The medical examiner’s office is working to determine the cause and manner of death, 
and the next of kin has been notified. 
 

Mr. Lucas reported the following success story from District 19: 
 

On July 13, 2020, the Martin County Sheriff’s Office notified investigators at the District 19 Medical 
Examiner’s Office of unidentified remains found in an overgrown grassy area just west of the railroad 
tracks in the vicinity of Railroad Avenue and SE Garden Street in Stuart.  Investigator Kimberly 
Loucks arrived on scene and observed what appeared to be a Caucasian male lying approximately 
50-60 feet from the railroad tracks.  Evidence found near the body indicated the decedent was 
possibly drinking alcohol and ingesting Kratom prior to death.  No obvious signs of trauma or foul 
play were seen.  Due to advanced stages of decomposition, fingerprinting was nearly impossible.  
Forensic Technician Gibbons attempted to rehydrate the decedent’s fingers to obtain fingerprints 
for identification.  Her diligence and consistent effort paid off and prints were able to be obtained.  
Fingerprint cards were made and turned over to analysts at the Martin County Sheriff’s Office.  On 
December 3, 2021, a fingerprint comparison was made and matched to those of Richard Harmon 
Whitton.  Mr. Whitton’s mother reported him missing from the Stuart area and had not heard from 
him in over a year.   

 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 5:  MASS FATALITY PLANS 
 
Dr. Nelson reminded all districts that hurricane season begins on June 1, 2022, and that everyone 
should review and make sure they have a current up-to-date mass fatality plan in place rather than 
wait for the need for a mass fatality plan.   
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 6: ADDING GABAPENTIN TO PDMP 
 
Dr. Nelson informed the Commission that there has been a marked increase in gabapentin (Neurontin®) 
related deaths and it is the concern of Doug Simon, the Director of the Florida Office of Drug Control 
Policy.  Dr. Wolf agreed that gabapentin should be added to the PDMP as her office is seeing a number 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 6 
 
 
of cases with it.  Commissioner Carol Whitmore said that she was surprised, but supported adding the 
drug to the PDMP, if needed.  Mr. Kirkland added that gabapentin is already being tracked by MEC staff 
for the Annual Drugs Identified in Deceased Persons Report. 
 
COMMISSIONER WHITMORE MADE A MOTION FOR THE COMMISSION TO SUPPORT ADDING 
GABAPENTIN TO THE PDMP, AND DR. WOLF SECONDED THE MOTION.  THE MOTION PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO SUPPORT THE ADDITION OF GABAPENTIN TO THE 
PDMP. 
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 7: TOXICOLOGY LAB DIRECTORS MEETING UPDATE 
 
Bruce A. Goldberger, Ph.D., reported to the Commission that the lab directors met on February 9, 2022.  
All of the laboratories were represented and it was a very productive meeting.  He feels like having the 
lab directors meet every quarter helps them stay on the same page regarding the evolution of new 
psychoactive substances in the State of Florida, and looks forward to continuing the meetings.   
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 8: EMERGING DRUGS 
 
Dr. Goldberger provided the Commission with an update on new drug trends.  The labs still continue to 
see increases in fentanyl related deaths and most of the labs are now reporting that in the majority of 
those deaths there are other contaminants including fluorofentanyl. Law enforcement and crime lab 
analysts are not exactly sure of the source of the fluorofentanyl or why it is actually in the fentanyl as a 
contaminant.  It may be related to the synthesis or manufacture of the fentanyl.  Xylazine also continues 
to be reported. It is worth noting that we should be on the alert for the designer benzodiazepines etizolam 
and clonazolam as well as the designer opioids such as metonitazene.  The nitazene class of drugs is 
difficult to detect and do evolve quickly.  The newest cathinone in the state is N,N-dimethylpentylone.  
The Miami-Dade County lab was the first to report it, and now there are cases in the University of Florida 
lab as well as from other districts across the state.  Development of a method for definitive identification 
and quantitation of N,N-dimethylpentylone is currently underway. 
 
Dr. Goldberger also announced that the new FROST dashboard design is only a couple small tweaks 
away from being completed.  Once it is published online, MEC staff and all districts will be notified.  The 
Department of Health also has a new fatal and non-fatal overdose dashboard.  
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 9: 2022 FAME EDUCATIONAL CONFERENCE 
 
Dr. Goldberger reported that the 2022 FAME Educational Conference is scheduled to be held July 27-
29, 2022, at the Omni Orlando Resort in Champions Gate, Florida.  The event will be jointly sponsored 
by the District 7 Medical Examiner’s Office and the W.R. Maples Center for Forensic Medicine at the 
University of Florida.  Rooms will be $189 per night and Continuing Medical Education credits will be 
provided.  
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 10: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
• Kerri Bryan with the Department of Health reported that The Florida Department of Health (DOH) is 
a recipient of the Overdose Data to Action (OD2A) grant from the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC). Its purpose is to fund and improve fatal and non-fatal drug overdose surveillance 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 7 
 
 
and to use that information to enhance drug overdose prevention activities. This grant is currently funded 
through August 31, 2023.  The Department has worked with the MEC since 2018 on making 
surveillance-related funding useful, accessible, and equitably distributed. In that time, the Department 
has implemented strategies to assist overcoming funding obstacles experienced by a number of medical 
examiner districts. To maximize collaboration, the DOH and the OD2A team were excited to partner 
with the districts in September 2021 on a toxicology screening funding opportunity.  On behalf of OD2A 
and the Florida Violent Death Reporting System (FLVDRS) she thanked the Commission and their 
advocates; Dr. Steven Nelson, Kenneth Jones, and Dr. Bruce Goldberger. 
 
• Avalon Adams-Thames, DrPH, with the DOH gave a brief overview of three data systems the DOH 
works with in conjunction with data collected from medical examiners.   

 
The objective of SUDORS (State Unintentional Drug Overdose Reporting System) is to collect and 
disseminate descriptions of drug overdose death circumstances using death certificates and medical 
examiners data.  Abstractors review suspected fatal overdoses, capturing detailed information on 
toxicology, death scene investigations, route of administration and other risk factors that may be 
associated with a fatal overdose.  This information is reported to the CDC every six months. 

 
The objective of RODD (Rapid Overdose Death Detection) is to rapidly detect overdose deaths.  There 
is collaboration with Dr. Goldberger, his team and with the medical examiners to collect preliminary data 
on suspected overdoses.  Starting with January 2022 deaths, they expanded the definition to include 
all suspected drug overdoses instead of focusing on opioids. This will allow for the identification of those 
fatal overdoses due to stimulants and other substances of interest. 
 
The objective of FLVDRS (Florida Violent Death Reporting System) is to provide injury and violence 
prevention specialists and policy-makers with timely information on the victims, suspects, relationships, 
circumstances, and weapons that are associated with violent deaths in Florida.  It is a joint project of 
the DOH and the University of South Florida College of Public Health established in 2019 through a 
cooperative agreement with the CDC and is housed in the DOH, Division of Community Health 
Promotion.  It is the state-based public health surveillance system that is part of the National Violent 
Death Reporting System (NVDRS), which was created in 2002.  NVDRS is implemented in all 50 states, 
the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico.  The system combines data from vital statistics death 
certificates, medical examiner records, and law enforcement reports to provide comprehensive context 
and answers about the “who, what, when, where, and why” leading to violent deaths. 
 
Dr. Adams-Thames also provided several updates for data sharing and grant funding. 
 
Data sharing update:  
 

In regards to SUDORS, districts are experiencing increased caseloads, but data sharing with the 
DOH continues to improve.  For 2020 deaths, 54% of districts (12 out of 22 offices) shared data.  
For 2021 deaths, 86% of districts (19 out of 22 offices) shared data. 
 
In regards to RODD, requested districts share data within 30 days in an effort to get data more 
rapidly.  In 2020, three districts shared aggregate counts.  From January to June of 2021, eight 
districts shared data with half sharing aggregate counts and the other half sharing line-level records.  
From July to December of 2021, nine districts shared data with one sharing aggregate counts and 
the other eight sharing line-level records.  Data requested should be readily available and should be 
logs of presumptive cases.  There is no expectation of delving into records and consuming valuable 
medical examiner’s office time.  There is a current goal of onboarding an additional one or two 
districts. 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2022 
Page 8 
 
 

 
 
Funding update: 
 

Close to $400,000 has been allocated to 13 of 22 district medical examiner offices.  All participating 
districts, with the exception of three, are currently spending down funds.  To date, 36% of the funds 
have been utilized overall.  Please remember that the deadline to spend funds is June 30, 2022. 

 
Dr. Adams-Thames went on to say that the DOH is a Public Health Authority responsible for public 
health matters as part of its official mandate, and is covered under the HIPAA public health exemption.  
Due to this exemption, there is no need to redact any PHI before data sharing.  A majority of districts 
do not redact information. With the increase in fatal overdoses, and recurring requests for data, having 
to redact information from reports can be timely, but not necessary.  Data is entered into an encrypted 
web-based system which is operated in compliance with federal protocols for information systems 
security.   Data abstractors receive extensive training and abstractor reports are verified by project 
administrators.  All potentially personal identifying information, including names, addresses, and dates 
of birth, are removed before information is entered into the database.  Case level data is not available 
to the general public. 
 
Increasing the availability and reporting of toxicology results for suspected drug overdose victims is 
critical to understanding and tracking the complex and changing nature of the drug overdose epidemic. 
The districts’ participation with the DOH increases the statewide surveillance capabilities, facilitates the 
development of evidence-based prevention strategies to combat fatal opioid related deaths in Florida, 
and we appreciate your time and engagement with OD2A and FLVDRS.  Additionally, teams are 
available to assist all districts in order to address any barriers and to ensure continued collaboration. 
Medical examiners play a critical role in responding to Florida’s overdose epidemic with prevention, 
education, and recovery options. 
 
• Mr. Kirkland reminded everyone that the next Medical Examiners Commission meeting is scheduled 
for May 13th at the Wyndham Grand Jupiter at Harbourside Place in Jupiter, FL. 
 
With no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 11:09 
A.M. 







Pursuant to the authority vested in me under Section 2.02(C) of the Miami-Dade County Home Rule 
Charter, I am pleased to appoint Kenneth D. Hutchins, M.D. to the position of Director of the Medical 
Examiner Department, effective immediately. 

Dr. Hutchins has dedicated the past 26 years to the Forensic Pathology profession. He joined the Miami-
Dade County Medical Examiner in 2001 and was promoted to Deputy Chief Medical Examiner in 2020, 
and to Interim Chief Medical Examiner in September 2021. During his tenure, Dr. Hutchins has provided 
sound leadership to the department. His work throughout the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the 
Surfside Building collapse honored the department’s mission to provide accurate, timely, dignified, and 
compassionate professional death investigative services for the citizens of Miami-Dade County. Dr. 
Hutchins is not only a trained Forensic Pathologist, but he is also Board Certified in Anatomic Pathology, 
Forensic Pathology, and Neuropathology. He uses this knowledge to train Forensic Pathology Fellows 
and Associate Medical Examiners for senior forensic pathologist positions throughout the country. 

Dr. Hutchins holds a medical degree from the University of Pennsylvania. His resume is attached for 
your reference. 

Please join me in congratulating Dr. Hutchins on this appointment. 

Attachment 

c: Honorable Harvey Ruvin, Clerk of the Counts 
Geri Bonzon-Keenan, County Attorney 
Gerald Sanchez, First Assistant County Attorney 
Jess McCarty, Executive Assistant County Attorney 
Office of the Mayor Senior Staff 
Department Directors 
Yinka Majekodunmi, Commission Auditor 
Jennifer Moon, Chief, Office of Policy and Budgetary Affairs 
Melissa Adames, Director, Clerk of the Board 
Eugene Love, Agenda Coordinator 

Date: January 27, 2022 

To: Honorable Chairman Jose “Pepe” Diaz 
and Members, Board of County Commissioners 

From: Daniella Levine Cava 
Mayor 

Subject: Mayoral Appointment – Director of the Medical Examiner Department 



Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 8th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 8th Judicial Circuit X

Sheriff's Offices
Alachua County Sheriff's Office X
Baker County Sheriff's Office X
Bradford County Sheriff's Office X
Gilchrist County Sheriff's Office X
Levy County Sheriff's Office X
Union County Sheriff's Office X

Commissioners
Alachua Board of County Commissioners X
Baker Board of County Commissioners X
Bradford County Manager X
Gilchrist Board of County Commissioners X
Levy Board of County Commissioners X
Union Board of County Commissioners X

Police Departments
Alachua Police Department X
Gainesville Police Department X
High Springs Police Department X
Lawtey Police Department X
Starke Police Department X
Trenton Department Of Public Safety X
Cedar Key Police Department X
Chiefland Police Department X
Williston Police Department X

Funeral Homes
PINKNEY-SMITH FUNERAL HOME INC X
PINKNEY-SMITH FUNERAL HOME INC X
CHESTNUT FUNERAL HOME INC X
MILAM FUNERAL HOME INC X
WASHINGTON FUNERAL HOME X
EVANS-CARTER FUNERAL HOME X
PINKNEY-SMITH FUNERAL HOME INC X
FOREST MEADOWS FUNERAL HOME X
D WILLIAMS MORTUARY SERVICES LLC X
WILLIAMS-THOMAS FUNERAL HOME INC X
A M WHITE MORTUARY X
WILLIAMS-THOMAS FUNERAL HOME INC X
DUNCAN BROTHERS FUNERAL HM PA X
MILAM FUNERAL HOME X
WILLIAMS-THOMAS FUNERAL HOME INC X
SIGNATURE MEMORIAL FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES LLC X
BOOKER T HUNT FUNERAL HOME X
A JEROME BROWN FUNERAL HOME X
GUERRY FUNERAL HOME X
FORBES FUNERAL HOME X
BLACKBURN - CURRY FUNERAL & CREMATION LLC X
MEMORIAL CHAPEL X
V TODD FERREIRA FUNERAL SERVICES X
FERREIRA FUNERAL SERVICES X
HAILE FUNERAL HOME X
JONES-GALLAGHER FUNERAL HOME LLC X
J HADLEY FUNERAL HOME LLC X
WATSON MILTON FUNERAL HOME LLC X
KNAUFF FUNERAL HOMES LLC X
RICK GOODING FUNERAL HOME CHIEFLAND LLC X
KNAUFF FUNERAL HOMES LLC X

District 8 Reappointment - William F. Hamilton, M.D.



CARNEGIE FUNERAL HOME X
ARCHER FUNERAL HOME INC X
FERREIRA FUNERAL SERVICES X

Medical Societies
Alachua County Medical Society X

Life Quest X

















Service  -  Integrity  -  Respect  -  Quality 

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 
Recommendation for Reappointment 

District 8 Medical Examiner 
William F. Hamilton, M.D. 

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district?  Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection. 

Favorable  
Please give suggestions for improvement. 

Unfavorable  
Please give reasons for negative response. 

No Opinion  
Please explain your response. 

Completed by: 

Signature:  ________________________________________  Date:  ______________________ 

Name:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

Agency Name:  ________________________________________________________________ 

Agency Address:  _______________________________________________________________ 

Return Completed Form to: 

Chad Lucas via e-mail:  stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us 

Or mail to: 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 

X

4/7/22

Marihelen Wheeler, Chair

Alachua County Board of County Commissioners 

12 SE 1st Street, 2nd Floor, Gainesville, FL 32601

mailto:stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us






MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Recommendation for Reappointment

District 8 Medical Examiner

William F. Hamilton, M.D.

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one
option below and provide comments regarding your selection.

Favorable

Please give suggestions for improvement.

Unfavorable □

Please give reasons for negative response.

No Opinion □

Please explain your response.

Completed by:

Imv dtM JiL Date:Signature:

Name:

Agency Name: UgjOM^

Agency Address: ^ ^

Jr.. CWx^>r

Return Completed Form to:

Chad Lucas via e-mail; stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us

Or mail to:

Medical Examiners Commission
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality





































MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 

Recommendation for Reappointment 

District 8 Medical Examiner 

William F. Hamilton, M.D. 

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection. 

Favorable XX 

Please give suggestions for improvement. 

Unfavorable □ 

Please give reasons for negative response. 

No Opinion □ 

Please explain your response. 

Completed by: 

Signature: __________________ Date: __February 9, 2022  _ 

Name: _Jacqueline Owens, Executive Vice President  _________ _ 

Agency: _Alachua County Medical Society______________ _ 

Agency Address: _235 SW 2nd Avenue, Gainesville, FL  32601  ______ _

Return Completed Form to: 

Chad Lucas via e-mail: stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us 

Or mail to: 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality 

No suggestions for improvement.  Dr. Hamilton has received excellent reports from Board Members 

and ACMS Members regarding his performance in this capacity.





Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 3rd Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 3rd Judicial Circuit X

Sheriff's Office
Dixie County Sheriff's Office X

Commissioners
Dixie Board of County Commissioners X

Police Departments
Cross City Police Department X

Funeral Homes
Rick Gooding Funeral Homes, Inc. X

Contractual Services for District 3 (Dixie County)









Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 9th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 9th Judicial Circuit X

Sheriff's Offices
Orange County Sheriff's Office X
Osceola County Sheriff's Office X

Commissioners
Orange County Mayor X
Osceola Board of County Commissioners X

Police Departments
Apopka Police Department X
City Of Belle Isle Police Department X
Eatonville Police Department X
Edgewood Police Department X
Maitland Police Department X
Oakland Police Department X
Ocoee Police Department X
Orlando Police Department X
Windermere Police Department X
Winter Garden Police Department X
Winter Park Police Department X
Kissimmee Police Department X
St. Cloud Police Department X

Funeral Homes X
A ROBERT BRYANT FUNERAL AND CREMATION CHAPEL X
LOOMIS FUNERAL HOME INC X
BETH SHALOM MEMORIAL CHAPEL X
FAMILY FUNERAL CARE X
POSTELL'S MORTUARY X
GOLDEN'S FUNERAL HOME INC X
GAIL & WYNN'S MORTUARY INC X
PAX VILLA FUNERAL HOMES X
A COMMUNITY FUNERAL HOME & SUNSET CREMATIONS X
BALDWIN FAIRCHILD AT CHAPEL HILL X
CELEBRATIONS OF LIFE MORTUARY & CREMATION SERVICES INC X
MITCHELL'S FUNERAL HOME X
COMPASS POINTE FUNERAL SERVICES X
BALDWIN BROTHERS X
MARVIN C ZANDERS FUNERAL HOME INC X
DEGUSIPE FUNERAL HOME & CREMATORY X
BALDWIN-FAIRCHILD FUNERAL HOME X
CAREY HAND COLONIAL FUNERAL HOME X
BALDWIN BROTHERS X
COLLISON CAREY HAND FUNERAL HOME X
GOOD LIFE FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION X
BALDWIN-FAIRCHILD FUNERAL HOME X
BALDWIN-FAIRCHILD FUNERAL HOME X
BALDWIN-FAIRCHILD FUNERAL HOME X
BALDWIN BROTHERS X
WOODLAWN MEMORIAL PARK & FUNERAL HOME X
DOBBS FUNERAL HOME X
NEWCOMER CREMATIONS, FUNERALS & RECEPTIONS X
WINTER OAK FUNERAL HOME & CREMATIONS X
BALDWIN FAIRCHILD ALTERNATIVES AT ALL FAITHS X
UNITY MEMORIAL FUNERAL HOME EAST CORP X
BATTS FUNERAL HOME X
PORTA COELI FUNERARIA Y CREMATORIO X
FUNERARIA SAN JUAN INC X
OSCEOLA MEMORY GARDENS CEMETERY, FUNERAL HOMES & CREMATORY X

District 9/25 Assessment (Home Rule) - Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.



FUNERARIA BORINQUEN X
CONRAD & THOMPSON FUNERAL HOME X
OSCEOLA MEMORY GARDENS CEMETERY, FUNERAL HOME & CREMATORY X
FUNERARIA SAN JUAN INC X
NEW HORIZON FUNERAL CHAPEL & CREMATION INC X
FISK FUNERAL HOME & CREMATORY X
GRISSOM FUNERAL HOME AND CREMATORY X
OSCEOLA MEMORY GARDENS CEMETERY, FUNERAL HOMES & CREMATORY X

Medical Societies
Physician's Society of Central Florida X

OurLegacy X



































































Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 10th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 10th Judicial Circuit X

Sheriff's Offices
Hardee County Sheriff's Office X
Highlands County Sheriff's Office X
Polk County Sheriff's Office X

Commissioners
Hardee Board of County Commissioners X
Highlands County Administrator X
Polk Board of County Commissioners X

Police Departments
Bowling Green Police Department X
Wauchula Police Department X
Lake Placid Police Department X
Sebring Police Department X
Auburndale Police Department X
Bartow Police Department X
Davenport Police Department X
Haines City Police Department X
Lake Alfred Police Department X
Lake Hamilton Police Department X
Lake Wales Police Department X
Lakeland Police Department X
Winter Haven Police Department X

Funeral Homes
ROBARTS FAMILY FUNERAL HOME INC X
PONGER-KAYS-GRADY FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION SERVICES X
MICHAEL A BROCHETTI FUNERAL HOME INC X
DOWDEN FUNERAL HOME X
SEAN A BANKS MORTUARY & CREMATION CENTER LLC X
MORRIS FUNERAL CHAPEL X
FOUNTAIN FUNERAL HOME X
STEPHENSON-NELSON FUNERAL HOME OF AVON PARK X
SCOTT SEAWINDS FUNERAL HOME AND CREMATORY X
SWANN'S MORTUARY X
STEPHENSON-NELSON FUNERAL HOME AND CREMATORY X
OAK RIDGE FUNERAL CARE X
OTT-LAUGHLIN FUNERAL HOME X
HANCOCK FUNERAL HOME INC X
HOLMES FUNERAL DIRECTORS X
WILLIAMS FUNERAL HOME IN BARTOW LLC X
LAKELAND FUNERAL HOME X
H W OLDHAM FUNERAL HOME X
CHARLES A LEWIS FUNERAL HOME X
LANIER FUNERAL AND CREMATION SERVICES X
RICHARD FUNERAL SERVICES INC X
CONEY FUNERAL HOME INC X
STEELE'S FAMILY FUNERAL SERVICES X
EPPS MEMORIAL FUNERAL HOME X
CANNON FUNERAL HOME LLC X
HEATH FUNERAL CHAPEL INC X
KERSEY FUNERAL HOME X
FAITH FUNERAL SERVICES X

District 10 Reappointment - Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.



GAUSE FUNERAL HOME INC X
DAVID-RUSSELL FUNERAL HOME X
MARION NELSON FUNERAL HOME INC X
MCLEAN FUNERAL HOME X
OAK RIDGE FUNERAL CARE X
WHIDDEN-MCLEAN FUNERAL HOME INC X
MARION NELSON FUNERAL HOME X
OTT-LAUGHLIN FUNERAL HOME X
JOHNELL CAVER YOUR HOME FOR FUNERALS INC X
ALEXANDER FUNERAL HOME INC X
JOHNSON-NELSON-GILL FUNERAL HOME LLC X
JAMES C BOYD FUNERAL HOME X
CENTRAL FLORIDA CASKET STORE & FUNERAL CHAPEL X
A M SEIGLER FUNERAL HOME X
GENTRY MORRISON FUNERAL HOME - SOUTHSIDE X
GENTRY MORRISON FUNERAL HOME X

Medical Societies
Highlands County Medical Society X
Polk County Medical Association X

LifeLink X





MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION
Recommendation for Reappointment

District 10 Medical Examiner 
Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection.

Favorable

Please give suggestions for improvement.

Unfavorable □

Please give reasons for negative response.

No Opinion □

Please explain your response.

Completed by:
i-

/-/4'2 7Signature:

Name: J4_________________________________

Agency Name: /)£ /yft., /O tm 7 c/tf/ss w s’_____

Agency Address: 2-S7J /l/. /?P(J P /) V PPf? fo hs, £/ Tiff3/

Date:

Return Completed Form to:

Chad Lucas via e-mail: stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us

Or mail to:

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality

mailto:stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us




MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 

Recommendation for Reappointment 

District 1 O Medical Examiner 
Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P. 

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection. 

Favorable ~ 
Please give suggestions for improvement. 

Unfavorable □ 

Please give reasons for negative response. 

NoOpinion □ 

Please explain your response. 

Completed by: n (l___ _ 

Signature: _\J_--.s:> __ f._._· ~--~---*_., _____ Date: -:J-... \O~ =i<>~ 

Name: ---'~'--~=""~\ _%_~--=0\-=-<.X~cY\---"-Cl....;..n.;....__ ________________ _ 

Agency Address: 400 ~. f.14C.c.,\l\f'~ !xr,c.c.t 

Return Completed Form to: 

Chad Lucas via e-mail: stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl .us 

Or mail to: 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality 

















Service  -  Integrity  -  Respect  -  Quality 

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 
Recommendation for Reappointment 

District 10 Medical Examiner 
Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P. 

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district?  Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection. 

Favorable  
Please give suggestions for improvement. 

Unfavorable  
Please give reasons for negative response. 

No Opinion  
Please explain your response. 

Completed by: 

Signature:  ________________________________________  Date:  ______________________ 

Name:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

Agency Name:  ________________________________________________________________ 

Agency Address:  _______________________________________________________________ 

Return Completed Form to: 

Chad Lucas via e-mail:  stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us 

Or mail to: 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 

X

James Fansler

Lake Placid Police Department
8 N Oak Ave Lake Placid FL 33852

Excellent communications between our office and Dr Nelson. He and his staff are 
always helpful and professional 

mailto:stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us






MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Recommendation for Reappoi ntment

District 10 Medical Examiner
Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one
option below and provide comments regarding your selection.

/Favorable

Please glve suggestions for improvement.

Unfavorable El

Please give reasons for negative response

No Opinion E
Please explain your response

Completed by:

Signature:

Name:

Date lla'zz
9" &rzr*"

"(
/,a

Agency Name:

Agency Address: N 3 0

Return Completed Form to

Chad Lucas via e-mail: stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us

Or mailto:

Medical Examiners Commission
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1 4Bg

Service - lntegrity - Respect - Quality



















































Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 11th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 11th Judicial Circuit X

Commissioners
Miami-Dade County Mayor X

Police Departments
Aventura Police Department X
Bal Harbour Village Police Department X
Bay Harbor Islands Police Department X
Biscayne Park Police Department X
Coral Gables Police Department X
Doral Police Department X
El Portal Police Department X
Florida City Police Department X
Golden Beach Police Department X
Hialeah Gardens Police Department X
Hialeah Police Department X
Homestead Police Department X
Indian Creek Village Public Safety Department X
Key Biscayne Police Department X
Medley Police Department X
Miami Beach Police Department X
Miami Gardens Police Department X
Miami Police Department X
Miami Shores Police Department X
Miami Springs Police Department X
Miami-Dade Police Department - This is the SO X
Miccosukee Police Department X
North Bay Village Police Department X
North Miami Beach Police Department X
North Miami Police Department X
Opa Locka Police Department X
Pinecrest Police Department X
South Miami Police Department X
Sunny Isles Beach Police Department X
Surfside Police Department X
Sweetwater Police Department X
Virginia Gardens Police Department X
West Miami Police Department X

Funeral Homes
MITCHELL FUNERAL HOME X
ST FORT'S FUNERAL HOME INC X
BERNARDO GARCIA FUNERAL HOME(HIALEAH), INC X
ROYAL FUNERAL SERVICE INC X
WE-GREGG L MASON FUNERAL HOME X
PAX-VILLA USA INC X
RIVERSIDE GORDON MEMORIAL CHAPELS AT MOUNT NEBO KENDALL X
FLORIDA FUNERAL HOME & CREMATORY X
MASPONS FUNERAL HOME INC X
BAIN - RANGE FUNERAL SERVICES PA X
JAY FUNERAL HOME X
RANGE FUNERAL HOME X
GRACE FUNERAL HOME X
EMMANUEL FUNERAL HOME X
GRACE FUNERAL HOME X
BERNARDO GARCIA FUNERAL HOME KENDALL INC X
MANKER FUNERAL HOME X
FUNERARIA MEMORIAL PLAN SAN JOSE X
WADE FUNERAL HOME LLC X
MISTY FUNERAL HOME X
FERDINAND FUNERAL HOMES X

District 11 Assessment (Home Rule) - Kenneth Hutchins, M.D.



NATIONAL FUNERAL HOMES X
POITIER FAMILY FUNERAL HOME LLC X
AT THE CROSS DR EUGENE FUNERAL HOME LLC X
RIVERSIDE GORDON MEMORIAL CHAPELS X
BRANAM FUNERAL HOME MEMORIAL PLAN X
JOHN HANKS MEMORIAL SERVICES LLC X
MCCLOUD & SIDERS FUNERAL HOME LLC X
ANGELS OF PARADISE MORTUARY LLC X
O CHRISTOPHER MCLEMORE FUNERAL HOMES INC X
FUNERARIA MEMORIAL PLAN SAN JOSE PALM X
WRIGHT AND YOUNG FUNERAL HOME INC X
PARADISE FUNERAL CHAPEL LLC X
AUXILIADORA FUNERARIA NACIONAL X
FUNERARIA MEMORIAL PLAN WESTCHESTER X
FUNERARIA HIALEAH MEMORIAL INC X
LA PAZ FUNERAL HOME INC X
ARCELAYS FUNERAL SERVICES LLC X
HADLEY DAVIS FUNERAL HOME LLC X
EDEN FUNERAL SERVICES MIAMI X
FUNERARIA LATINA EMMANUEL LLC X
CABALLERO RIVERO HIALEAH X
CABALLERO RIVERO WOODLAWN SOUTH X
CABALLERO RIVERO PALMS WOODLAWN X
HADLEY DAVIS FUNERAL HOME LLC X
VISTA FUNERAL HOME X
M A HALL FUNERAL SERVICES LLC X
FUNERARIA GRACELAND, GRACELAND FUNERAL HOME X
CABALLERO RIVERO WESTCHESTER X
CABALLERO RIVERO LITTLE HAVANA X
RIYADH UL JANNAH X
PARADISE MEMORIAL FUNERAL HOME LLC X
VALLES FUNERAL HOMES & CREMATORY X
STANFILL FUNERAL HOMES X
MASPONS FUNERAL HOMES X
CABALLERO RIVERO SOUTHERN X
VAN ORSDEL FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES X
M ATHALIE RANGE CHAPEL OF PEACEFUL REST X
JAY - JOHNSON'S FUNERAL HOME X
VAN ORSDEL FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES X
VIOR FUNERAL HOME INC X
VAN ORSDEL FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES X
SAMUEL'S FUNERAL HOME INC X
REFLEXIONS FUNERAL HOME X
TRINITY FUNERAL CHAPEL LLC X
RICHARDSON MORTUARY X
LEVITT-WEINSTEIN BLASBERG RUBIN-ZILBERT MEMORIAL CHAPELS X
CABALLERO RIVERO SUNSET X
LAKESIDE MEMORIAL PARK AND FUNERAL HOME X
HALL FERGUSON AND HEWITT MORTUARY PA X
BERNARDO GARCIA FUNERAL HOME WESTCHESTER INC X
A J MANUEL FUNERAL HOME INC X

Medical Societies
Dade County Medical Association X

Life Alliance X

















MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 

Assessment of Medical Examiner Services 

Interim District 11 Medical Examiner 
Kenneth Hutchins, M.D. 

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection. 

Favorable ~ 

Please give suggestions for improvement. 

1)o '""\ A 6,,rt; ~ ~ l) . 

Unfavorable □ 

Please give reasons for negative response. 

No Opinion □ 

Please explain your response. 

Completed by: 

Signature: ;f~ Date 1//7/4,J-
Name: - ~- ..b~k-"~ ~- ~ r-_-- ~ /-f.-,_ tM,,(_~-----
AgencyName: &~ lAa"6( l?D 
Agency Address: a1S1 Sttt 2l;jQ 2) 5r r!-G fi :s-r I Sc./ 

Return Completed Form to: 

Chad Lucas via e-mail : stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us 

Or mail to: 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality 





















































Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response

State Attorney's Office 12th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 12th Judicial Circuit X

DeSoto County Sheriff's Office X
Manatee County Sheriff's Office X
Sarasota County Sheriff's Office X

DeSoto County Board of County Commissioners X
Manatee County Board of County Commissioners X
Sarasota County Board of County Commissioners X

Arcadia Police Department X
Bradenton Beach Police Department X
Bradenton Police Department X
Holmes Beach Police Department X
Longboat Key Police Department X
Palmetto Police Department X
North Port Police Department X
Sarasota Police Department X
Venice Police Department X

PONGER-KAYS-GRADY FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES X
HICKSON FUNERAL HOME X
COVELL FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION SERVICES X
WESTSIDE FUNERAL HOME INC X
GRIFFITH-CLINE FUNERAL AND CREMATION SERVICES INC X
TOALE BROTHERS FUNERAL HOME SOUTH X
AM CREMATION & FUNERAL CARE X
BALDWIN BROTHERS X
ABUNDANT FAVOR MORTUARY INC X
BRASOTA SERVICES INC X
SKYWAY MEMORIAL FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION SERVICES X
APOSTLE I FUNERAL HOME LLC X
GROOVER FUNERAL HOME AT MANSION MEMORIAL PARK X
ROBERT TOALE AND SONS FUNERAL HOME AT MANASOTA MEMORIAL PARK X
BROWN AND SONS FUNERAL HOME X
GULF COAST CREMATION & FUNERAL SERVICES X
SHANNON FUNERAL HOMES PA X
D ALAN MOORE LICENSED FUNERAL DIRECTOR X
BROWN & SONS FUNERAL HOME X
NATIONAL CREMATION AND BURIAL SOCIETY X
ENGLEWOOD COMMUNITY FUNERAL HOME INC X
ROBERT TOALE AND SONS FUNERAL HOME AT PALMS MEMORIAL PARK X
TOALE BROTHERS FUNERAL HOME GULF GATE X
TOALE BROTHERS FUNERAL HOME COLONIAL CHAPEL X
JENNINGS FUNERAL HOME & CREMATORY X
LEMON BAY FUNERAL HOME AND CREMATION SERVICES X
KAYS-PONGER & USELTON FUNERAL HOMES AND CREMATION X
FARLEY FUNERAL HOMES & CREMATORY X
BALDWIN BROTHERS MEMORIAL CARE SERVICES INC X
ALL VETERANS - ALL FAMILIES FUNERALS & CREMATIONS LLC X
MALONEY FUNERAL HOME LLC X
JONES FUNERAL HOME LLC X
GENDRON FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES INC X
SOUND CHOICE CREMATION X
FARLEY FUNERAL HOMES & CREMATORY X
FARLEY FUNERAL HOMES & CREMATORY X
ROBERT TOALE AND SONS FUNERAL HOME - WIEGAND CHAPEL X

District 12 Reappointment - Russell S. Vega, M.D.

Funeral Homes

Police Departments

Commissioners

Sheriff's Offices

Courts



Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response

District 12 Reappointment - Russell S. Vega, M.D.

GENDRON FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES INC X
YOUR TRADITIONS CREMATION & FUNERAL CHAPEL X
CHANDLER'S FUNERAL HOME X
TOALE BROTHERS INC X

LifeLink X



MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Recommendation for Reappointment

District 12 Medical Examiner

Russell S. Vega, M.D.

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one
option below and provide cements regarding your selection.

Favorable y/

Please give suggestions for improvement. — A/o/i -C

S^yOhj(y Or- c? t/
ay Di>^cf (2. f4c_

Unfavorable □ I Suypoti'.
Please give reasons for negative response.

No Opinion □
Please explain your response.

Completed by:

Signature:

Name:

Date: 11 (

Agency Name: _

Agency Address: -^07/ /g (yi u^cjj SqrQj^ _

Return Completed Form to:

Chad Lucas via e-mail: stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us

Or mall to:

Medical Examiners Commission
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality





































MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Recommendation for Reappointment

District 12 Medical Examiner
Russell S. Vega, M.D.

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one
option below and provid?oomments regarding your selection.

/
Favorable M

Please give suggestions for improvement.

Unfavorable E
Please give reasons for negative response.

No Opinion tr
Please explain your response.

Completed by:

Agency Name:

Agency Address: 47_8{

o",", y'lofzz-

Retum Completed Form to:

Chad Lucas via e-mail: stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl .us

Or mail to:

Medical Examiners Commission
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1 489

Service - Integrity - Respect - Quality

















Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 13th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 13th Judicial Circuit X

Sheriff's Office
Hillsborough County Sheriff's Office X

Commissioners
Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners X

Police Departments
Plant City Police Department X
Tampa Police Department X
Temple Terrace Police Department X

Funeral Homes X
SOUTHERN FUNERAL CARE AND CREMATION SERVICES INC X
STOWERS FUNERAL HOME X
NATIONAL CREMATION AND BURIAL SOCIETY X
HILLSBORO MEMORIAL FUNERAL HOME X
RAY WILLIAMS FUNERAL HOME X
SEGAL FUNERAL HOME BETH DAVID CHAPEL X
HOPEWELL FUNERAL HOME INC X
ZIPPERER'S FUNERAL HOME X
SWILLEY FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION SERVICE INC X
CHARLOW FUNERAL HOME X
BREWER & SONS FUNERAL, CREMATION AND CEMETERY SERVICES X
WINSLOW HONORS FUNERAL CHAPEL X
JAMES C BOYD FUNERAL HOME AND CREMATIONS INC X
LOYLESS FUNERAL HOME X
SUN CITY CENTER FUNERAL HOME X
SIMPLE, EASY, AFFORDABLE CREMATION INC X
STONE'S MEMORIAL FUNERAL PARLOR CORP X
FLORIDA MORTUARY FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES X
CREMATIONS OF GREATER TAMPA BAY INC X
SMART CREMATION OF FLORIDA LLC X
COMPASSIONATE CREMATIONS AND MEMORIALS LLC X
ADEN FUNERAL HOME X
ADAMS & JENNINGS FUNERAL HOME X
BLOUNT & CURRY FUNERAL HOME AT GARDEN OF MEMORIES X
HAUGHT FUNERAL HOME X
SCRIVENS JOHNSON MORTUARY SERVICE LLC X
SUNSET FUNERAL HOME AND MEMORY GARDENS X
BLOUNT & CURRY FUNERAL HOME - TERRACE OAKS CHAPEL X
JACKSON FUNERAL HOME X
BRANDON CREMATION AND FUNERAL SERVICES INC X
INTEGRITY FUNERAL SERVICES OF TAMPA FL INC X
WILSON BROTHERS INCORP D/B/A WILSON FUNERAL HOME X
WELLS MEMORIAL AND EVENT CENTER X
GONZALEZ FUNERAL HOME X
HARMON FUNERAL HOME INC X
WASHINGTON FUNERAL HOME X
GUDES FUNERAL HOME INC X
BOZA & ROEL FUNERAL HOME X
BLOUNT & CURRY FUNERAL HOMES - CARROLLWOOD CHAPEL X
BLOUNT & CURRY FUNERAL HOME, OLDSMAR/WEST HILLSBOROUGH CHAPEL X
BLOUNT & CURRY FUNERAL HOME-MACDILL CHAPEL X
DIGNITY MEMORIAL FUNERAL & CREMATION SERVICES X
SERENITY MEADOWS MEMORIAL PARK FUNERAL HOME X
AIKENS FUNERAL HOME X
MACDONALD FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION INC X

District 13 Assessment (Home Rule) - Kelly G. Devers, M.D. 



Medical Societies
Hillsborough County Medical Association X

LifeLink X































Favorable Non-Favorable No Opinion No Response
Courts
State Attorney's Office 14th Judicial Circuit X
Public Defender's Office 14th Judicial Circuit X

Sheriff's Offices
Bay County Sheriff's Office X
Calhoun County Sheriff's Office X
Gulf County Sheriff's Office X
Holmes County Sheriff's Office X
Jackson County Sheriff's Office X
Washington County Sheriff's Office X

Commissioners
Bay Board of County Commissioners X
Calhoun Board of County Commissioners X
Gulf Board of County Commissioners X
Holmes Board of County Commissioners X
Jackson Board of County Commissioners X
Washington Board of County Commissioners X

Police Departments
Lynn Haven Police Department X
Panama City Beach Police Department X
Panama City Police Department X
Parker Police Department X
Springfield Police Department X
Altha Police Department X
Blountstown Police Department X
Port St. Joe Police Department X
Bonifay Police Department X
Cottondale Police Department X
Graceville Police Department X
Marianna Police Department X
Sneads Police Department X
Chipley Police Department X

Funeral Homes
WILSON FUNERAL HOME X
HERITAGE FUNERAL HOME AND CREMATION SERVICES LLC X
SOUTHERLAND FAMILY FUNERAL HOME X
AFFORDABLE FUNERAL CARE BY YORKSHIRE X
KENT FOREST LAWN FUNERAL HOME X
BATTLE MORTUARY X
THE RICHARDSON GROUP FUNERALS & CREMATIONS INC X
RUSSELL ALLEN WRIGHT SR MORTUARY X
HERITAGE SHORES FUNERAL HOME & CREMATION CENTRE X
EMERALD SHORES CREMATION CENTRE X
PASCO GAINER SR FUNERAL HOME INC X
ADAMS FUNERAL HOMES INC X
PEAVY FUNERAL HOME X
COMFORTER FUNERAL HOME X
SIMS FUNERAL HOME INC X
PEEL FUNERAL HOME X
PEOPLES FUNERAL HOME X
MCKINNIE FUNERAL HOME X
MARIANNA CHAPEL FUNERAL HOME X
JAMES & SIKES FUNERAL HOME MADDOX CHAPEL X
VANN'S FUNERAL HOME X
JAMES & LIPFORD FUNERAL HOME X
MCALPIN FUNERAL HOME X
CHRISTIAN MEMORIAL CHAPEL X
WILLIAMS FUNERAL HOME X
BROWN FUNERAL HOME X
COOPER FUNERAL HOME X
SHANE OBERT FUNERAL HOME INC X
PEEL FUNERAL HOME VERNON CHAPEL X

Medical Societies
Emerald Coast Medical Association X

LifeQuest X

District 14 Reappointment - Jay Radtke, M.D.

























Service  -  Integrity  -  Respect  -  Quality 

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION 
Recommendation for Reappointment 

District 14 Medical Examiner 
Jay Radtke, M.D. 

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district?  Please select one 
option below and provide comments regarding your selection. 

Favorable  
Please give suggestions for improvement. 

Unfavorable  
Please give reasons for negative response. 

No Opinion  
Please explain your response. 

Completed by: 

Signature:  ________________________________________  Date:  ______________________ 

Name:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

Agency Name:  ________________________________________________________________ 

Agency Address:  _______________________________________________________________ 

Return Completed Form to: 

Chad Lucas via e-mail:  stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us 

Or mail to: 

Medical Examiners Commission 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Post Office Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 

James Peacock, Chairman

Jackson County Board of County Commissioners

2864 Madison Street  Marianna, FL  32448

February 22, 2022

mailto:stevenchadlucas@fdle.state.fl.us


































MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Recommendation for Reappointment

District 14 Medical Examiner
Jay Radtke, M.D.

How do you rate the quality of medical examiner services provided in your district? Please select one
option below and provide comments regarding your selection.

Favorable {

Unfavorable El

Please give reasons for negative response.

No Opinion E
Please explain your response.

Please give suggestions for improvement.

U,/g r'aaz TlaaFFlE Z)Ecu^-,as Za lne4tV e-?sES ryFT
7//8, t)Etz€2seD ./5 .ua7-/n/Dez Z>zdzaq alere€ arvz affir.r (a**sg
/a Qu€sZzant2&d

Completed by:

Signature:

Name

Agency Name:

Agency Address:

d*Hz2^
Z,'o-b/

Date: ,/ -/2-2AZ Z

2

5u -ci-/
v2tutE

zr'

Retum Completed Form to:

Chad Lucas via e-mail : stevenchad lucas@fdle. state.fl . us

Or mailto:

Medical Examiners Commission
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1 489

Service - lntegrity - Respect - Quality














































	Cover Page - May 2022 MEC Meeting
	Agenda
	February 2022 Meeting Minutes
	District 22 Vacancy
	New District 11 Medical Examiner
	District 8 Reappointment Ballots
	Districts 9 & 25 Assessments
	District 10 Reappointment Ballots
	District 11 Assessments
	District 12 Reappointment Ballots
	District 13 Assessments
	District 14 Reappointment Ballots
	FEMA Funeral Billing
	Thank You



